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Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

Dear Shareholders,

| hereby present the annual report of HyComm Wireless Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2013 and summarise
below the recent developments in the Group.

RESULTS OF THE GROUP

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group recorded
turnover for the year of approximately HK$9.3 million (2012:
HK$8.2 million) and a loss for the year of approximately HK$1.3
million (2012: restated profit of HK$10.4 million). The loss for the
year was mainly attributable to the decrease in the amount of
revaluation gains on investment properties.

DIVIDENDS
The Board of Directors (the “Board”) does not recommend the
payment of any dividends for the year ended 31 March 2013.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, the Group was mainly engaged
in the businesses of leasing of investment properties, property
investment, sub-leasing of car parking spaces and the provision
of loan financing. The rental income from the leasing of car
parking spaces and from the investment properties and the
interest income from loan financing continued to contribute to
and provide stable income streams to the Group. The Group
recorded turnover of HK$9.3 million which was represented by
the businesses of leasing of properties, carpark management and
loan financing in the amounts of HK$0.2 million, HK$6.6 million
and HK$2.5 million, respectively. The Group recorded profits in
the segments of loan financing of approximately HK$2.0 million
and losses of HK$0.52 million, HK$0.43 million and HK$0.04
million in the segments of leasing of investment properties,
property investment and carpark management, respectively.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

PROSPECTS

The economy in the US has shown moderate growth, while
the uncertainties in Europe and tightening of fiscal policies and
stimulus measures in the US have affected overall economic
growth. The Group will continue to take a prudent approach
in managing its existing businesses. The existing businesses
of property investment, leasing of carparking spaces and loan
financing continue to provide stable its income streams to the
Group and will help to maintain its internal resources for future
development. It is the strategy of the Group to seek investments
from time to time so as to broaden its income stream and scope
of business and strengthen its investment portfolio. The Company
will continue to seek new investment opportunities and evaluate
investment proposals in an effort to enhance profitability and
shareholder retumns.

LIU Shun Chuen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWR DT

Currently, the principal activity of the Company is investment
holding and its subsidiaries mainly engage in the businesses of
property investment, provision of loan financing and operating the
leasing of car parking spaces.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES, PLEDGE OF
ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2013, bank and cash balances (including time
deposits) maintained by the Group were HK$141.7 million (2012:
HK$168.2 million), representing a decrease of HK$26.5 million
compared with the position as at 31 March 2012. It is believed
that the Group has adequate cash resources to meet its normal
working capital requirements and any commitments for future
development. The gearing of the Group, measured as total debts
to total assets, was 0.3% (2012: 0.5%) as at 31 March 2018.

Most of the business transactions conducted by the Group were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. As at 31 March 2013, there
were no outstanding forward contracts in foreign currencies
committed by the Group that might involve it in significant foreign
exchange risks and exposures.

As at 31 March 2013, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities or capital commitments.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had 11 staff. Employees and
directors are remunerated based on individual contribution,
industry practices and prevailing market conditions and in
accordance with existing labour laws. In addition to basic salaries,
employees and directors are rewarded with performance-related
bonuses and other staff welfare benefits.

Annual Report 2013 £ 1R

B ARRIZEBXRBREER - MEN
BARATIENREMERE  REEZBRER
REEELHER -

nBES UEER - EEEER
HAREE

RZZE—=F=FA=+—8 AEEEHETK
R & &R (BIEE 87 R) B 1 141,700,000 7T
—T— 4 : #%¥168,200,0007T) B _F
——F=RA=1+—Hm 5% 26,500,0007T °
AEBEE  EAGTHRESBERIVEGAS
LEESTHFERRRER ZEMAE - KRZF
—=F=A=1+—H8 AEEZAEAEMRE
HEERBEFEZEEABLEERAR03%(ZF
——F :05%) °

REBHEITZ RN EH X HHABEIIE
R-FE—=F=ZF=+—H  AEELEEM
RERINEEMAEL » MAJES HAZERI
PEE a2 o

RZE—=F=ZA=+—H8 ' "EBEWETH
ERIABBEREARASE -

==

RZZE—=F=ZA=+—H0 AEEB11%E
EE -RBEREZEFZHEDREATR - 17%
B RBITIRARBIRIRITYS TAGIEE
MRERFIN - BB NEBINEE RN
AREZAEEMETIER -



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWR DT

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company comprises three
independent non-executive directors. The primary duties of the
audit committee are to review and advise on the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group, the auditing and
financial reporting processes and internal control systems of the
Group, including reviewing the results for the year.

The audit committee meets with the Group’s senior management
regularly to review the effectiveness of the internal control systems
and the interim and annual reports of the Group.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company comprises three
members, namely, Mr. Ng Wai Hung, Mr. Wu Wang Li and
Mr. Jacobsen William Keith, all of whom are independent non-
executive directors of the Company. The primary function of the
Remuneration Committee is to make recommendations to the
Board on the Group’s policies and structure for remuneration of
Directors and senior management and to review and approve
management remuneration proposals with reference to the
Board’s corporate goals and objectives. The principal duties
include the revision of the terms of the remuneration packages of
all Directors and senior management on the basis of their merits,
qualifications and competence by reference to corporate goals
and objectives resolved by the Board from time to time.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company consists of four
members, namely, Mr. Liu Shun Chuen, Mr. Ng Wai Hung, Mr.
Wu Wang Li and Mr. Jacobsen William Keith, the majority of them
are independent non-executive Directors. The primary function
of the nomination committee is to review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategies.

The roles and authorities of the audit committee, the remuneration
committee and the nomination committee are clearly set out
in their respective terms of reference which are available on
request to shareholders of the Company and are posted on the
Company’s website: http://www.hycomm-wireless.com.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERSNEEE HAER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Shun Chuen, aged 50, is the Chairman of the Company.
He joined the Group on 12 October 2007. He is responsible for
the overall corporate strategy of the Group. He holds a Bachelor
of Science degree in Business Administration from San Francisco
State University, United States of America, and a Bachelor
degree in Estate Management from University of Reading, United
Kingdom. He has more than 12 years experience in property
development and investment in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Mr. Yeung Sau Chung, aged 47, is the managing director of
the Group. He joined the Group on 6 November 2007. He is
currently responsible for the overall management of the Group.
He has more than 17 years experience in research and analysis
of investment portfolios and in risk management. He holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree in Accountancy from City University of
Hong Kong.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Kong Lingbiao, aged 45, has resigned as Chairman of the
Company and is now non-executive director of the Company.
He joined the Group on 17 March 2011. He has more than
twenty years working experience in the coal mining sector
and has rich experience in safety supervision, production,
technology, investment, operation and management of coal mine
companies. Mr. Kong graduated from China University of Mining
and Technology (Beijing) and possesses a bachelor degree, a
master degree and a PhD in mining engineering. From 1990 to
2001, Mr. Kong worked in Xuzhou Coal Mining Group as chief
engineer in various coal mines. During the period July 2004 to
September 2010, Mr. Kong worked for and took various senior
positions in China Coal & Coke Holdings Limited (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of China National Coal Group Corporation). From
July 2004 to August 2007, he acted as Director of Production
and Construction Department, Director of Production and Safety
Department, Director of Project Construction Office and Vice
Chief Engineer. From August 2007 to September 2010, he acted
as General Director of the Safety Supervision Bureau and Director
of Project Construction Office and was an executive director and
legal representative of China Coal Jingda Coking Limited. Save
as redesignation as non-executive director of the Company, Mr.
Kong does not hold any position within the Company and its
subsidiaries.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERSNEEE HAER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wu Wang Li, aged 38, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 31 December 2007.
He obtained his bachelor of commerce degree from Deakin
University and has over 11 years of experience in the auditing and
accounting profession and in consulting services. He is a director
of Skywise Consultants Limited, which is principally engaged in
provision of business consulting services such as financial and
accounting services and is a Certified Practicing Accountant,
Australia.

Mr. Ng Wai Hung, aged 49, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 10 January 2008.
He is a practicing solicitor and a partner in lu, Lai & Li, a
Hong Kong firm of solicitors and notaries. He has extensive
experience in the area of securities law, corporate law and
commercial law in Hong Kong and has been involved in initial
public offerings of securities in Hong Kong as well as corporate
restructuring and merger and acquisitions and takeovers of
listed companies. He frequently advises multinational and Hong
Kong corporations on private equity investments, joint ventures
as well as on regulatory compliance matters. Currently, he is an
independent non-executive director of Trigiant Group Limited
(Stock Code: 1300),Tech Pro Technology Development Limited
(Stock Code: 3823), GOME Electrical Appliance Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 493) and Fortune Sun (China) Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 352).

Mr. Jacobsen William Keith, aged 46, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 20 June
2008. He has more than 17 years experience in corporate finance
and business development. He holds a Bachelor of Law degree
from the University of Hong Kong and a Master of Business
Administration degree from the University of British Columbia,
Canada. He is an independent non-executive director of abc
Multiactive Limited (Stock Code: 8131).
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERSNEEE HAER

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Liu Yee Nee, aged 47, was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company on 7 November 2012. Ms. Liu holds
a master degree of Business Administration from the Hong
Kong University of Science & Technology and is a member of
The Chartered Institute of Management Accountants, The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries & Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of
Company Secretaries and has over 23 years experience in the
field of accounting and management.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

The board of directors of the Company submit herewith the
annual report together with the audited financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of its principal subsidiaries
are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2013 and
the state of the Company’s and Group’s affairs as at that date are
set out in the financial statements on pages 30 to 94.

DIVIDENDS AND RESERVES

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividends
for the year ended 31 March 2013.

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year ended 31 March 2013 are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and note 21 to the
financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The investment properties of the Group were revalued as at 31
March 2013 and the resulting revaluation gains amounted to
approximately HK$1,100,000 (2012: HK$13,300,000).

Details of these and other movements in the investment properties
of the Group are set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group and the Company are set out in note 13 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the share capital of the Company during the year are set
out in note 20 to the financial statements.

MAJOR PROPERTIES
Particulars of the major properties of the Group are set out on
page 96.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive directors:
Mr. Liu Shun Chuen (Chairman)

(Appointed as Chairman on 30 May 2013)
Mr. Yeung Sau Chung (Managing Director)

Non-executive director:
Mr. Kong Lingbiao (Resigned as Chairman and
Executive Director on 30 May 2013)

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Wu Wang Li

Mr. Ng Wai Hung

Mr. Jacobsen William Keith

In accordance with the bye-laws of the Company, and to comply
with the Listing Rules, Mr. Wu Wang Li and Mr. Ng Wai Hung will
retire from office at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the financial statements:

(i) there were no other transactions which are required to be
disclosed as related party transactions pursuant to the
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”); and

(i) there were no other contracts of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisting at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

Save as disclosed below, as at 31 March 2013 and as at the
date of this report, none of the directors, the chief executive
and their associates of the Company had any interests and
short positions in the shares of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which have been notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the
“Model Code”) of the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWRE

SHARE OPTIONS

Pursuant to a resolution passed at a special general meeting of
the shareholders held on 15 July 2002, the Company terminated
the old share option scheme and adopted the new share option
scheme (the “New Scheme”) on 9 September 2002.

The primary purpose of the New Scheme is to provide incentives
to directors and eligible employees and it remains in force for a
period of 10 years commencing on 9 September 2002. Under
the New Scheme, the directors may, at their absolute discretion,
invite any person belonging to any of the following classes of
participants to take up options to subscribe for shares in the
Company:

(i) any employees, executives (including any executive directors
but excluding any independent non-executive directors and
non-executive directors), managers and consultants of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any entity (“Invested
Entity”) in which any members of the Group holds an equity
interest;

(i) any non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) of the Company, any subsidiaries or any
Invested Entity;

(i) any suppliers of goods or services to any members of the
Group or any Invested Entity;

(iv)  any customers of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(v)  any persons or entities that provide research, development
or other technological support to the Group or any Invested
Entity;

(viy any shareholders or any members of the Group or any
Invested Entity or any holders of any securities issued by
any members of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(viiy any advisors (professional) or consultants to any area of
business or business development of any members of the
Group or any Invested Entity; and

(vii) any joint venture partners or business alliances that

cooperate with any members of the Group or any Invested
Entity in any area of business operations or development.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the New Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The number
of shares in respect of which options may be granted to any
individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any point in time without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. Options granted to
substantial shareholders or independent non-executive directors
in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital or with a value
in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved in advance by the
Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the date of
grant, upon payment of HK$1.00 per option. Options may be
exercised at any time from the date of offer of the share option
to a date to be determined and notified by the directors or, in the
absence of such determination, the earlier of the date on which
the options lapse or the 10th anniversary of the date of grant. The
exercise price is determined by the directors of the Company,
and will not be less than the higher of the closing price of the
Company’s shares on the date of grant, the average closing price
of the shares for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant, and the nominal value of the Company shares.

There have been no outstanding options granted under the
New Scheme since its adoption and, therefore, no options were
outstanding at the end of the year. In addition, there were no
options granted to, or outstanding in respect of the old share
option scheme at the end of reporting period. The share option
scheme was expired on 8 September 2012.

14

B (8
KREARBRESEIE - IRIEH T BIAT 452
H 2 BB E TS R IR 1 8 - FERBIBAA A
A REDBITRAZ 10% ° READFRE
HEREE - AR A TR EM —E R A s
BEER S R ROBE - FERBALD ]
AR IR B TIRID 2 1% X B F 5
TIEMITEEE LS RBBADRRAKO.1%
o 48 {8 1838 75 1 5,000,000 7T 2 AR - BE
S AR IR B AL o

BREANELRES 21 ARER WA
BHEREXEEK1.00T 2 RE - BIRE
ARREBEREREEhEFTEEBHNZ
B (KM E =L E|BEMDRE - RIRTRE
PreiE iz Bk B AR A TIRF 2 B (JA
REERE)) NBERITE - TEEHRARRE
FEE WTEERATREBEZESE AR
AR BB WTHE - BERR A HA
hEE R B 2P FHRHERANR BN E
B

B SRR 8 AR B AR BT AT 81 IR R TT
{82 FERRHE » B AR B 0 R e R AT (E B AR
BEAh - R HARA R - ERRESTEIET
W BB REER LR ARTTE - BREEIE
R-ZE——FAANRER -



Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate. In addition, none of the directors, or their spouses
or children under the age of 18 had any rights to subscribe for
securities of the Company or had exercised any such rights during
the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS INTERESTS

So far as is known to the directors or chief executive of the
Company, the following persons (other than a director or chief
executive of the Company or their associates) who had an interest
or short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would fall to be disclosed
under provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
who was directly and indirectly interested in ten per cent. or more
of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights
to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any other
member the Group.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS INTERESTS TERERES )

(Continued)

Interest in Underlying Shares FAVBEE IR 0 2 HE s

Number of  Approximate %
underlying  of shareholding

Name Capacity shares held interest

PR I IRFER A
et g5 B (D 2 H ERald

Billion Gain Development Limited Beneficial owner 94,000,000 18.83

(Note 1) (Ftat 1) EnEBA
Miss Beh Yong Shin (Note 1) Interest of controlled 94,000,000 18.83
BARLL/NE (KfaE 1) corporation
ARSI FE R
Regal Power Investments Limited Beneficial owner 88,500,000 17.72
(Note 2) (ff1z#2) EnEBA
Mr. Chan Yuen Ming (Note 2) Interest of controlled 88,500,000 17.72
PR A (HaE2) corporation
PRSI A AR
Solar Fortune Investments Limited Beneficial owner 60,000,000 12.02
(Note 3) (171 3) EmlEA
Mr. Kong Lingbiao (Note 3) Interest of controlled 60,000,000 12.02
LB E (HaE3) corporation
RAEHI A AR
Joy Glory Limited (Note 4) (7t 4) Beneficial owner 42,000,000 8.41
EnlEA
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph (Note 4) Interest of controlled 42,000,000 8.41
IR RSE (Hfat4) corporation
SRS A AR

Notes: Hiet -

1. Billion Gain Development Limited (“Billion Gain”) is wholly and 1. Billion Gain Development Limited ([ Billion
beneficially owned by Miss Beh Yong Shin, who is also a director of Ganl) HEESEHFEL B2 EERHHESR -
Billion Gain.

2. Regal Power Investments Limited (“Regal Power”) is wholly and 2. Regal Power Investments Limited ([ Regal
beneficially owned by Mr. Chan Yuen Ming, who is also a director Power| ) HEZEEMRAEELZEERES °
of Regal Power.

3. Solar Fortune Investments Limited (“Solar Fortune”) is wholly and 3. Solar Fortune Investments Limited ([ Solar
beneficially owned by Mr. Kong Lingbiao, who is a director of Solar Fortune ) HEEFI SR EE2EETRE
Fortune and is a non-executive director of the Company. B MASBEEENARARZIERITES -

4. Joy Glory Limited (“Joy Glory”) is wholly and beneficially owned by 4. Joy Glory Limited ([ Joy Glory |) i H 2= % %9

Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph, who is also a director of Joy Glory.

16

BEAEEEERER -



Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS INTERESTS
(Continued)

Interest in Underlying Shares (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to the directors or
chief executive of the Company, the Company had not been
notified of any other interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of
Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the aggregate amount
of turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 26.7% of the Group’s total turnover
and the amount of turnover attributable to the largest customer
was approximately 14.8% of total turnover.

The Group had no purchases of trade goods during the year
ended 31 March 2013 and thus there were no major product
suppliers for the Group for the year ended 31 March 2013.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) has any equity interests in any of
the Group’s five largest customers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors of the Company, the
Company has maintained a public float of its shares throughout
the year ended 31 March 2013 which exceeded the minimum
requirements of the Stock Exchange.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme for its
employees. Particulars of the provident fund scheme are set out
in note 23 to the financial statements.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
independent non-executive directors to be independent.

AUDITORS

KLC Kennic Lui & Co. Ltd., Certified Public Accountants
(Practising) were first appointed as auditors of the Company in
2003.

KLC Kennic Lui & Co. Ltd. retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the reappointment

of KLC Kennic Lui & Co. Ltd. as auditors of the Company is to be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

LIU Shun Chuen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2013
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERHRE

The board of directors (the “Board”) recognises their mission to
create value and maximise returns on behalf of the shareholders
of the Company while at the same time fulfilling their corporate
responsibilities. Accordingly, the Company strives to promote and
uphold a balanced and high standard of corporate governance.

The Company has put in place corporate governance practices
to comply with all the provisions of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited , except
for certain areas of non-compliance discussed later in this report,
during the year ended 31 March 2013.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the Company’s
code of conduct for dealings in securities of the Company by
the directors. The Company has made specific and reasonable
enquiries of all directors and is satisfied that they have complied
with the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2013.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible to the shareholders and all directors
are collectively responsible for formulating the strategic business
direction of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) and
setting objectives for management, overseeing performance and
assessing the effectiveness of management strategies.

The Directors

Currently, the Board comprises six directors, including two
executive directors, one non-executive director and three
independent non-executive directors. The biographical details
of the directors and senior management of the Company are
set out on pages 7 to 9 of this annual report. The composition
of the Board is well balanced with each director having sound
knowledge, experience and/or expertise relevant to the business
operations and development of the Group. All directors are aware
of their collective and individual responsibilities to shareholders
and have exercised their duties with care, skill and diligence and,
thereby, have contributed to the performance of the Group.
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Throughout the year ended 31 March 2013, the Company
complied with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive directors with at least one independent non-executive
director possessing appropriate professional qualification of
accounting or related financial management expertise. The Board
has received from each independent non-executive director an
annual confirmation of his independence and considers that all of
them are independent under the guidelines set out in Rules 3.13
of the Listing Rules.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship with each other.

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board reviews the performance of the operating divisions
against their agreed targets and budgets on a regular basis and
also exercises a number of reserved powers, including but not
limited to:

° formulating long-term strategies;
° setting objectives for management;

° approving public announcements including the interim and
annual financial statements;

° setting dividend and other important policies;
° approving material borrowings and treasury policies; and

° assessing and committing to major acquisitions, disposals,
formation of joint ventures and capital transactions.

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements of the Company for each financial year and ensuring
that these give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group, its results and cash flows for that period. The directors
are also responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records
which will accurately reflect the financial position of the Group are
maintained at all times.

All directors have full access to accurate, relevant and timely

information of the Group and are able to obtain independent
professional advice on issues whenever deemed necessary.
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Continuous Professional Development of Directors
Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of
the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Group. Every director is fully aware of his
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant statutory requirements. Directors should participate in
appropriate continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, relevant materials
including regulatory updates have been provided to the directors
for their reference and study.

A summary of training received by directors according to the
records provided by the directors is as follows:

EECFHEERRRE
EEREMARARREZTZBRAENLAEE
ZIRT - FBRDRBEROZINEE - BRE
EFRAR ETRAIREREERIIBET 2
%f&f& CEERDIEFEERBEFERERIA
BERERFREZ B NG BRESHE
FEFLABRENTR -

REBEE—_T—=F=A=+—HItFE ' BN
EERHEEEER  BEEEBEMNZ&HHE
8 UHFELXE R -

BEEEMEGEY  EFRETS
mT

Gl

Training on corporate governance,
regulatory development and

Director i) other relevant topics
BELEER  RAZER
H b AERE ERE IS

Executive Directors HITESE

Liu Shun Chuen B2 v/

Yeung Sau Chung 1575 v/

Non-executive Director HHITESE

Kong Lingbiao L2E v/

Independent Non-executive Directors B IHITEE

Ng Wai Hung Rshig v

Wu Wang Li REL 4

Jacobsen William Keith Jacobsen William Keith v

Board Meetings

Directors are consulted on matters to be included in the agenda
for Board meetings and have access to advice and services to
ensure that Board meeting procedures and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed. At least 14 days formal notice
is to be given before each regular meeting is held. For special
meetings, reasonable notice is given. The Company held four
Board meetings during the year ended 31 March 2013.

There are no service contracts with any director and all members

of the Board are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
according to the bye-laws of the Company.
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Audit Committee

Currently, the Audit Committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Wu Wang Li (Chairman), Mr.
Jacobsen William Keith and Mr. Ng Wai Hung. The written terms
of reference for the Audit Committee were reviewed on 29 March
2012.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the Group’s
financial information, overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting systems and internal control procedures and for
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and/or removal of the external auditors, including
approving their remuneration and terms of engagement.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing and
advising on the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group together with overseeing the auditing, financial
reporting processes and internal control systems of the Group,
including reviews of the Group’s interim and annual reports.

The Audit Committee held three meetings for the year ended 31
March 2013. During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Audit
Committee reviewed the final results for the year ended 31 March
2012 with the external auditors and the interim results for the six
months ended 30 September 2012 before recommending them
to the Board for approval.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 29 March
2012. The Remuneration Committee comprises three members,
all of whom are independent non-executive directors, namely,
Mr. Ng Wai Hung (Chairman), Mr. Wu Wang Li and Mr. Jacobsen
William Keith.

The duties of the Remuneration Committee include:

(@  to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policies and structure for all director and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of formal and
transparent procedures for developing remuneration policy;

(b) to review and approve management remuneration

proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals
and objectives;
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to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive directors
and senior management, including benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, such as compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive directors;

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitments and responsibilities and employment
conditions within the Group;

to review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to
ensure that they are consistent with contractual terms and
are otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and

to ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration.

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee was established on 29 March 2012.

The Nomination Committee comprises four members, one of

whom is an executive director, namely, Mr. Liu Shun Chuen

(Chairman) and three of whom are independent non-executive

directors, namely, Mr. Wu Wang Li, Mr. Ng Wai Hung and Mr.

Jacobsen William Keith.
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The duties of the Nomination Committee include:

@)

to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors; and

make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the

Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee are

available on the Company’s website: http://www.hycomm-

wireless.com.

Details of the attendance of individual director at board meetings,

committee meetings and the annual general meeting during the
year ended 31 March 2013 are set out in the table below:

REZEEZBAESR

@ EIBFRNEFSZIRE - ABKAE
A (BIEREE - MRk &RITmE) - A5
EAAES ARRBEMBRYESTS(EL
ZEEBIREES

b VMEAESEERAETEFTEKRELZ
AL UERZEBALHEESTHL
StMEERRIES

© FHEBIMEITESZ2BIE &

) HMEEZRERERZETURES(LER
ETEREBITHRAR) BETEICERE
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ERZES FHZEEMRRZE
EvEEREBESHE N AR ML
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HE-T-ZHZA=+—HIL5E 5EF
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Board Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination General
Members of the Board EZEHE Meetings ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting
EZ88E ENZET FWEEE 1E2ZEE REBEEAS
Executive directors HITEE
Yeung Sau Chung BE® 4/4 - - - il
Liu Shun Chuen B2 4/4 - - - 11
Non-executive director FHTEE
Kong Lingbiao KL 4/4 - - 1/1 0/
Independent non-executive directors BUFNTEE
Wu Wang Li RolE 4/4 2/2 11 11 01
Ng Wai Hung REH 4/4 2/2 11 1/1 01
Jacabsen William Keith Jacobsen William Keith 4/4 2/2 11 11 0N
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TEERWS

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has not engaged an external service provider as
its company secretary. The biographical details of the company
secretary of the Company is set out on page 9 of this annual
report.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To request to convene a special general meeting, shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of
the Company, to require a special general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days
of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitioners themselves may do so in accordance
with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda. For details refer to the bye-laws of the Company.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing through the company secretary whose
contact details are as follows:

The Company Secretary

HyComm Wireless Limited

Room 2103, 21/F.,

No. 9 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong
Fax: (852) 3968 0157

Email: service@nhycomme-wireless.com

Shareholders may also direct enquiries to the Board at the general
meetings of the Company.

CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
OF THE COMPANY

There were no significant changes in constitutional documents of
the Company during the year ended 31 March 2013.
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TEERWS

DEVIATIONS FROM THE CODE ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the CG Code except for the
deviations as set out below.

CG Code provision A.4 states that non-executive directors should
be appointed for specific terms. All non-executive directors of the
Company are appointed without any specific term. According to
the Company’s bye-laws, at every annual general meeting, one-
third of the directors for the time being (or, if their number is not
a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation. The Board considers
that sufficient measures, such as this, are taken to ensure the
corporate governance practices of the Company are not less
exacting than those in the CG Code.

The Board continues to review the corporate governance status
of the Company from time to time and make any necessary
changes to comply with the CG Code as and when considered
appropriate.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the total remuneration for
audit services provided by the external auditor, KLC Kennic Lui &
Co. Ltd., amounted to approximately HK$566,000. The audit fee
was approved by the Board and the Audit Committee.

The re-appointment of KLC Kennic Lui & Co. Ltd. as auditor of
the Company has been recommended by the Audit Committee
and endorsed by the Board and is subject to approval by the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group. The
responsibilities of the directors are to oversee the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements for each financial period
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and of its results and cash flows for that period. The directors
have to ensure that the consolidated financial statements of
the Group are in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards, adjustments and estimates
made are prudent, fair and reasonable and the consolidated
financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis. The
directors also acknowledge that the publication of the financial
statements of the Group should be made in a timely manner.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERHRE

The statement of the auditors regarding their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 28 and 29.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring sound
and effective internal control systems for the Group are in place
to safeguard the assets of the Company at all times. The systems
of internal control also aim to help achieve the Group’s business
objectives by maintaining proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information. It is recognised that the
systems provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement in the financial statements or loss of assets
and help to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure when
business objectives are being pursued.

Reviews on the effectiveness of the internal control systems
covering all material controls in the financial, operational and
compliance areas including coverage of the risk management
functions as well as physical assets and information systems
security were conducted during the year. The Audit Committee
was reported to in respect of key findings identified in respect
of such reviews and, in turn, reported all material issues and
recommendations, if any and as appropriate, to the Board. It
also considered the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience in the Group’s accounting and financial reporting
function and the training programmes and budgets involved.

The external auditors reviewed and documented the internal
control systems of the Group. Certain relevant recommendations
made by the external auditors have since been implemented by
the Group in stages together with subsequent improvements,
if any, made by the Board to further enhance internal control
policies, procedures and practices.

The Board has concluded that the Group’s overall systems of

internal control were functioning during the year, and will continue
to improve the operation of the systems in the future.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BT S

KICT

EREEHBEBERAERLA
KLC Kennic Lui & Co. Ltd.

Certified Public Accountants (Practising)

To the shareholders of
HyComm Wireless Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
HyComm Wireless Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 30 to 94, which
comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 31 March 2013, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of the report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B RS

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 March 2013 and of the Group’s results and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

KLC Kennic Lui & Co. Ltd.

Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Choy Po Fong

Practising Certificate No.: PO4688

Hong Kong, 28 June 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

e EERERR

(Year ended 31 March 2013) (EZ = —=F=A=+—HILFE)

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——fF
(Restated)
(&%)
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Kt e BT T BT
Turnover o 5 9,338 8,183
Revaluation gains on investment properties 1% & ¥ & %S 12 1,100 13,300
Other revenue H A 6 1,676 2,616
Other gains Hiplgzs 6 - 989
Operating costs A DN (13,014) (14,344)
(Loss)/profit from operations g (B518),m (900) 10,744
Finance costs R AN 7(a) = (322)
Share of losses of jointly controlled entities & {5 2L [R5 I B fE E518 15 (432) =
(Loss)/profit before taxation BELRT (E18), %A 7 (1,332) 10,422
Taxation I8 = (32)
(Loss)/profit for the year REE (BR),TH5F (1,332) 10,390
Other comprehensive loss for the year ~ AEEE M2 EEE
Available-for-sale financial assets: AEEEM B EE ¢
— Change in fair values during the year — RNEEZ AFEE (2,340) (6,559)
— Realisation of change in fair values — HEREZBEAFEE
on disposal - (994)
Other comprehensive loss for the year, XREEHMEEEIE
net of tax HBRTEIE (2,340) (7,553)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income AEEE2HE(EE)
for the year N - (3,672) 2,837
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Continued)

e B H W R )

(Year ended 31 March 2013) (BZE=—F—=F=A=+—HILLFE)

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——fF
(Restated)
(&31)
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
Kifex BT T B FT
(Loss)/profit attributable to: THIERL (B518) & A -
Equity holders of the Company RARERBR (1,414) 10,362
Non-controlling interests R 82 28
(Loss)/profit for the year REE (BR)&5H (1,332) 10,390
Total comprehensive (loss)/income THFrE2mE (88),
attributable to: PN L
Equity holders of the Company AREERIE (3,754) 2,809
Non-controlling interests IEPE R = 82 28
Total comprehensive (loss)/income AEEEHE(EE),
for the year PNt (3,672) 2,837
(Loss)/Earnings per share attributable to 7~ Bl#EH R RELARFEE
equity holders of the Company SR (&58), 27
for the year (expressed in HK cents) (B 11
Basic AR (0.28) 2.08
Diluted s N/A 73 N/A 3 A

The notes on pages 39 to 94 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PRI w R

(At 31 March 2013) (R—B—=#=HA=+—H)
2013 2012 2011
—E-=F = —T——F
(Restated) (Restated)
(E31)) (&%)
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000
Bt aE BT T BT T BT T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties KEE 12 126,100 125,000 111,700
Property, plant and equipment M - MR R 13 116 51 -
Investment in jointly controlled RERZEHIEE 2EE
entities 15 18,711 - -
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ A {t 4 E MK E & 16 4,989 7,329 15,668
149,916 132,380 127,368
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables FEWBER R HhElgkE 17 20,551 15,742 1,368
Cash and cash equivalents HehERRLEER 141,671 168,164 245,969
162,222 183,906 247,337
Current liabilities RENEE
Other payables and accrued E b e A MBS E A
charges 18 733 1,209 1,661
Bank borrowings RITEE - - 23,743
733 1,209 25,404
Net current assets RBEEFE 161,489 182,697 221,933
Total assets less current BEERADEE
liabilities 311,405 315,077 349,301
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Other payables HibfERIE 18 - - 37,093
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIBAE 19 252 252 220
252 252 37,313
Net assets EEFE 311,153 314,825 311,988
32 HyComm Wireless Limited ZE k& FBEHRA A



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

e B SR 2k ()

(At 31 March 2013) (R—Z—=%=A=+—H)

2013 2012 2011
—E-=F ZT——F ZT——F
(Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (&)
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Hita BETF T BT BT
Capital and reserves EXKf#iE

Share capital R& AN 20 49,928 49,928 49,928
Reserves HiE 261,081 264,835 262,026

Total equity attributable to equity 7~7 B3 IR 3R FE(L
holders of the Company FERBEE 311,009 314,763 311,954
Non-controlling interests IR ER 144 62 34
Total equity FERAEEE 311,153 314,825 311,988

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on &=
28 June 2013. RET]

Liu Shun Chuen
BiEE
Director

EE

Yeung Sau Chung
BET

Director

EE

ERZT-—=F A+ N\B#AERK

The notes on pages 39 to 94 form part of these financial Z39ZF 948 ~ Wizt AL EMEREAPEH -

statements.
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Statement of Financial Position

EAFEAR SRR

(At 31 March 2013) (R—Z—=%=A=+—H)

2013 2012
—E_=4F —Z——fF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000

ES EETTT EBET T

Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI - WS N RE 13 16 11
Interests in subsidiaries NG 14 115,477 83,580
115,493 83,591
Current assets REVEE
Other receivables H fth fE U TR T8 17 339 923
Cash and cash equivalents RehERRSEE 127,066 165,826
127,405 166,749
Current liabilities REIBE
Other payables and accrued charges HAt eI IB R ERTE A 18 566 1,055
Net current assets REEEFE 126,839 165,694
Net assets EEFE 242,332 249,285
Capital and reserves BEARRH#E
Share capital R& 7R 20 49,928 49,928
Reserves B 21 192,404 199,357
Total equity FERmEzE 242,332 249,285

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
28 June 2013.

Liu Shun Chuen
BiEE
Director

EF

The notes on pages 39 to 94 form part of these financial
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

1:'"‘)(%:-%@2%

(Year ended 31 March 2013) (BZE =T —=F=A=+—HIFE)

Surplus  Fair value Non-
Share Share  account reserve Accumulated controlling
capital  premium (note i) (note i) losses Total interests Total
BEE ATERE FFER
BE  RAEE (WizEi) (WisEii) 2 EE @5t B Azt
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000
BEFT BEFT AETT  BETIL BT EEFTT  BMTr BT
Balance at 1 April 2011 i——iﬁlﬁ =
o3-S 49,928 143,807 255,025 3,185 (150,206) 301,739 34 301,773
Impact of change in accounting EX & HR25E
policy = = - - 10215 10215 - 10215
Balance at 1 April 2011 (restated) R=FE——FMA—A
Zﬁﬁﬁ(iﬁﬂ 49,928 143,807 255,025 3,185 (139,991) 311,954 34 311,988
Comprehensive income 2EKBA
Profit for the year REEEH - = - - 10,362 10,362 28 10,390
Other comprehensive loss Ht2AEE
Change in fair value of A HERBEE
available-for-sale financial assets A FEEH) - - - (6,559) - (6,559) - (6,559)
Realisation of change in fair values &R E IR AT 45%E
of available-for-sale financial BISEEY
assets on disposal AHEEY - - - (994) - (994) - (994)
Total other comprehensiveloss  Eft 2 EEEEE - - - (7,559) - (7,559) - (7,559)
Total comprehensive 2B/ (BB)
income/(loss) Fake) - - - (7,559) 10,362 2,809 28 2,837
Balance at 31 March 2012and  R=ZE—--%=f§
at 1 April 2012 (restated) =t-AK
“Z--“#MA-A
&R (E5) 49,928 143,807 255,025 (4,368) (129,629) 314,763 62 314,825
Comprehensive income ESE[LON
Profit/(loss) for the year REEHETF/(BE) - - - - (1,414) (1,414) 82 (1,332)
Other comprehensive loss Hh2AEE
Change in fair value of RSN BEE
available-for-sale financiel assets A FEZE) - - - (2,340) - (2,340) - (2,340)
Total other comprehensive loss HEeEERES - - - (2,340) - (2,340) - (2,340)
Total comprehensive income/  ZEWA /(B18) £%E
(loss) - - - (2,340) (1414 (3,754) 82 (3672)
Balance at 31 March 2013 R-B-=&
ZRA=t-Bz&& 49,928 143,807 255,025 (6,708) (131,043) 311,009 144 311,153
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)

= A\ FEE L 42 =
I = ﬁﬂé@%(?ﬁﬁ)
(Year ended 31 March 2013) (HEZ=T—=F=A=+—HILFE)

Notes:

The surplus account represents the difference between the nominal
amount of the share capital issued by the Company and the
aggregate of the nominal amount of the issued share capital and
other reserve accounts of a subsidiary which was acquired by the
Company pursuant to the Group reorganisation in 1997.

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the
fair value of available-for-sale financial assets held at the end of the
reporting period.

The notes on pages 39 to 94 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AERETMER

(Year ended 31 March 2013) (EZ = —=F=A=+—HILFE)

2013 2012
—EBE—=fF —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BHEFT BT T
Cash flows from operating activities REXKBRERNE
(Loss)/profit before taxation Br&i AT (B1B), V= T (1,332) 10,422
Adjustments for: AT B IERAZ
Revaluation gains on investment properties KEMESHKE (1,100) (13,300)
Depreciation e 23 4
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEHIEENBEE 2 K
financial assets - (989)
Interest expenses AMEMZ = 322
Interest income F B A (1,672) (2,616)
Share of losses of jointly controlled entities FE{E R H B R R 432 -
Operating loss before changes in Rt BEEHAIKE B
working capital (3,649) (6,157)
Increase in trade and other receivables 7 Ui B 0 Ko L it 8 U FRIE 1 AN (4,862) (14,328)
Decrease in other payables and accrued Hh BN RIERERTBRRD
charges (476) (435)
Cash used in operations LIEREIE S (8,987) (20,920)
Interest paid BAFIE = (2,432)
Net cash used in operating activities REEEFEIRE TR (8,987) (23,352)

Annual Report 2013 £ R

37



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

AERETRER @

(Year ended 31 March 2013) (B & — %

—=f=A=t+—HLFE)

2013 2012
= = —E—_4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Cash flows from investing activities REXBFBRERE
Proceeds from disposal of o AT 8 B S B B P S RUE
available-for-sale financial assets - 1,775
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BAYIE - W NEE (88) (55)
Payment for acquisition of a subsidiary S AKB A BRI - (35,000)
Capital contributed to jointly controlled entities [ 4k [EI3% | & 88)F & (19,139) =
Interest income received BUF B U A 1,721 2,570
Net cash used in investing activities REXBERESFE (17,506) (30,710)
Cash flows from financing activities RMEXKERERE
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEE - (23,743)
Net cash used in financing activities REEBMERESFRE - (23,743)
Net decrease in cash and cash ReRkERRSEB R FE
equivalents (26,493) (77,805)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FHzRERERRELER
of the year 168,164 245,969
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRZEERERREER
of the year 141,671 168,164
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents REeRERRESEE DM
Cash at bank and on hand RIT N FBRE 5,002 3,797
Deposits with banks within three months =& A RN EIER 2 IRITIF K
of maturity 136,669 164,367
141,671 168,164

The notes on pages 39 to 94 form part of these financial

statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R AR B

(Year ended 31 March 2013) (EZ = —=F=A=+—HILFE)

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the corporate information section of the annual report.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities and other particulars of
the subsidiaries are set out in note 26 to the financial
statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which is a collective
term that includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group
is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company. Note 3 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS IR AR BT

(Year ended 31 March 2013) (EZ = —=F=A=+—HILFE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

40

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2013 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets are stated at their fair values
as explained in the accounting policies set out below:

— investment properties (see note 2(e))

— financial instruments classified as available-for-
sale (see note 2(g))

Other non-current assets are stated at the lower of
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgments
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimates are revised if the revisions affect
only that period, or in the period of the revisions and
future periods if the revisions affects both current and
future periods.

Judgments made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 4.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R AR B

(Year ended 31 March 2013) (EZ = —=F=A=+—HILFE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity
S0 as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing
control, potential voting rights that presently are
exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances and transactions and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same
way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity
holders of the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face of
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity holders of the
Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
changes in relative interests, but no adjustments
are made to goodwill and no gains or losses are
recognised.

Annual Report 2013 £ R

2.

B

()

=EBGR (#)

B B & SRR IR A
MEARRAREEN 2ER -2
AEEARREERB B RES
KR - AR E RF A 25
BN B B - IREHA SR
NEHRBAATEZBEERSR
-

RIBRABZIREEZESEFRLS
EREAAREYBHRE X8
EHERIIE BB TEEEAR -
SEARAEEHRER S AREE
NRARMBRHELE 2 EMARZR G
MARREURA M BERRE 2B Y
o SEARARERFGELE ZAE
BB BT ARER W 2 HRITE
U EEAEREDR SR

IR IEW IFHARRIEZ K
RIEMB AR 2 Bl - A%
B30 8 B % i e 2 FE B A B EME
AT BESMETR - SR SRE B EAR
NAEMBRAETER XS ERAE
BHEE-

FERREERAMBIRRERZ
IR B P AN A SRR RS
D FYIR o FRERERATIE A
SEEERERE 2EKEHRED
RIFFER DR N RRRAITA A
B2 FRE N B RaE R EEK
ANHBEEDEC °

AEER—FHMBAR 2 #mHR
HE)MIU |EHREZGIE - AIA
BRIVEERR S BBRABRAE
IR NP KRR i S SRR
ARBRIARIE R S E) - IEBLE YRS
SYEHARE B ERREE

41



Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS IR AR BT

(Year ended 31 March 2013) (EZ = —=F=A=+—HILFE)

2.

42

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interest
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset (see note 2(g)) or, when appropriate, the cost
on initial recognition of an investment in a jointly
controlled entity (see note 2(d)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(j)).

Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which operates
under a contractual arrangement between the Group
or Company and other parties, where the contractual
arrangement establishes that the Group or Company
and one or more of the other parties share joint
control over the economic activity of the entity.

An investment in a jointly controlled entity is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless it is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale). Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted
for any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-
date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets
over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the
investment is adjusted for the post acquisition change
in the Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and
any impairment losses relating to the investment (see
notes 2(i)). Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the
Group’s share of post-acquisition, post-tax results of
the investees and any impairment losses for the year
are recognised in the consolidated income statement,
whereas the Group’s share of post-acquisition post-
tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Year ended 31 March 2013) (B Z ==
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Jointly controlled entities (Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in a jointly controlled entity, the Group’s interest is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose,
the Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with
the Group’s long-term interests that in substance
form part of the Group’s net investment in the jointly
controlled entity.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and a jointly
controlled entity are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When the Group ceases to have joint control over
a jointly controlled entity, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss. Any interest retained in that former investee
at the date when joint control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset or,
when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in jointly controlled entities are stated
at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(i)), unless
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

(f)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under leasehold interests to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are stated at fair value. Any
gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or from
the retirement or disposal of an investment property
is recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from
investment properties is accounted for as described in
note 2(q)(i).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than investment
properties, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 2())).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method at
the following rates per annum:

20%
20%

Leasehold improvements
Furniture, fixture and equipment

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement
or disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R AR B

(Year ended 31 March 2013) (EZ = —=F=A=+—HILFE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

Other investments in debt and equity
securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for
investments in debt and equity securities, other than
investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled
entities, are as set out below.

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially
stated at fair value, which is their transaction price
unless fair value can be more reliably estimated
using valuation techniques whose variables include
only data from observable markets. Cost includes
attributable transaction costs, except where indicated
otherwise below. These investments are subsequently
accounted for, depending on their classification, as
set out below:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end
of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured,
with any resultant gains or losses being recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss does not include any dividends or interest
earned on these investment as these are recognised
in accordance with the policies set out in note 2(q)(ii)
and (jii).

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the
Company have the positive ability and intention to
hold to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity
securities. Held-to-maturity securities are stated in the
statement of financial position at amortised cost less
impairment losses.

Investments in equity securities that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured are recognised
in the statement of financial position at cost less
impairment losses.
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(Year ended 31 March 2013) (EZ = —=F=A=+—HILFE)

2.

46

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

(h)

Other investments in debt and equity
securities (Continued)

Investments in securities which do not fall into any of
the above categories are classified as available-for-
sale securities. At the end of each reporting period
the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain
or loss being recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
fair value reserve, except foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from changes in the amortised cost
of monetary items such as debt securities which are
recognised directly in profit or loss. Dividend income
from these investments is recognised in profit or loss
in accordance with the policy set out in note 2(q)(iii)
and, where these investments are interest bearing,
interest calculated using the effective interest method
is recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the
policy set out in note 2(g)(ii). When these investments
are derecognised or impaired, the cumulative gain or
loss is classified from equity to profit or loss.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date
the Group commits to purchase/sell the investments
or they expire.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which
do not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Year ended 31 March 2013) (EZ = —=F=A=+—HILFE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(h) Leased assets (Continued)
(i) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent rentals
are charged to profit or loss in the accounting

period in which they are incurred.

() Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity

securities and other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and
other current and non-current receivables that
are stated at cost or amortised cost or are
classified as available-for-sale securities are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the

following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal

payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor;

and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity

instrument below its cost.
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BA RS IR AR BT

(Year ended 31 March 2013) (EZ = —=F=A=+—HILFE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
() Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables (Continued)
If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss
is determined and recognised as follows:

—  For investments in subsidiaries, associates
and jointly controlled entities (including
those recognised using the equity method
(see note 2(d)), the impairment loss is
measured by comparing the recoverable
amount of the investment with its carrying
amount in accordance with note 2(j)(ii). The
impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount
in accordance with note 2(j)(ii).

—  For trade and other receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting
is material. This assessment is made
collectively where these financial assets
share similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which are
assessed for impairment collectively are
based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the
asset’s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in
prior years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R AR B

(Year ended 31 March 2013) (B ZE —ZE—=F=A=+—HILtFEE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
() Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables (Continued)

— For available-for-sale securities, the
cumulative loss that has been recognised
in the fair value reserve is reclassified
to profit or loss. The amount of the
cumulative loss that is recognised in
profit or loss is the difference between
the acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that
asset previously recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or
loss in respect of available-for-sale equity
securities are not reversed through profit
or loss. Any subsequent increase in the
fair value of such assets is recognised
directly in other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-
for-sale debt securities are reversed if the
subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised.
Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade debtors directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to that
debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS IR AR BT

(Year ended 31 March 2013) (EZ = —=F=A=+—HILFE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
() Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill,
an impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

— prepaid interests in leasehold land
classified as being held under an operating
lease;

— intangible assets; and
—  goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill, intangible assets that are not yet
available for use and intangible assets that have
indefinite useful lines, the recoverable amount is
estimated annually whether or not there is any
indication of impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R AR B

(Year ended 31 March 2013) (EZ = —=F=A=+—HILFE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

() Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued)
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Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect
of cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce
the carrying amount of the other assets
in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs to sell, or
value in use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwiill,
impairment losses are reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount. Impairment losses in respect of
goodwill are not reversed.

Reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that
would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS IR AR BT

(Year ended 31 March 2013) (EZ = —=F=A=+—HILFE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
() Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, the Group is required to prepare an
interim financial report in compliance with HKAS
34, Interim Financial Reporting, in respect of
the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies
the same impairment testing, recognition and
reversal criteria as it would at the end of the
financial year.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of goodwill, available-for-sale
equity securities and unquoted equity securities
carried at cost are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a
smaller loss, would have been recognised had
the impairment been assessed only at the end
of the financial year to which the interim period
relates. Consequently, if the fair value of an
available-for-sale equity security increases in the
remainder of the annual period, or in any other
period subsequently, the increase is recognised
in other comprehensive income and not profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R AR B

(Year ended 31 March 2013) (B ZE=—F—=F=A=+—HILFE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)
() Trade and other receivables )

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
less any allowances for impairment of doubtful debts,
except where the receivables are interest-free loans
made to related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial.
In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

(k) Interest-bearing borrowings (k)

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised and
redemption value being recognised in profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.

() Trade and other payables ()]
Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities
measured in accordance with note 2(p)(i), trade and
other payables are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

(m) Cash and cash equivalents (m)
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash
flows.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS IR AR BT

(Year ended 31 March 2013) (EZ = —=F=A=+—HILFE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(n) Employee benefits
(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

(i) Defined contribution retirement plan obligations
The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “Scheme”), under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of
its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the Scheme. The assets of the
Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s contributions as employer vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the
Scheme.

(o) Taxation

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R AR B

(Year ended 31 March 2013) (EZ = —=F=A=+—HILFE)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences, respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise
from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities and all deferred tax assets, to the
extent it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deducible for tax purposes
and the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination).

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of the reporting period and is
reduced to the extent it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction
is reversed to the extent it becomes probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS IR AR BT

(Year ended 31 March 2013) (EZ = —=F=A=+—HILFE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities

(i)

56

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee,
the fair value of the guarantee (being the
transaction price, unless the fair value can
otherwise be reliably estimated) is initially
recognised as deferred income within trade and
other payables. Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee,
the consideration is recognised in accordance
with the Group’s policies applicable to that
category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial
recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or
loss over the term of the guarantee as income
from financial guarantees issued. In addition,
provisions are recognised in accordance with
note 2(p)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call upon
the Group under the guarantee, and (ii) the
amount of that claim on the Group is expected
to exceed the amount currently carried in trade
and other payables in respect of that guarantee
i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R AR B

(Year ended 31 March 2013) (EZ = —=F=A=+—HILFE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)
(i) Contingent liabilities acquired in business

combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination which are present obligations at
the date of acquisition are initially recognised
at fair value, provided the fair value can be
reliably measured. After their initial recognition
at fair value, such contingent liabilities are
recognised at the higher of the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation
where appropriate, and the amount that would
be determined in accordance with note 2(p)
(ii). Contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination that cannot be reliably fair valued
or were not present obligations at the date of
acquisition are disclosed in accordance with
note 2(p)(iii).

(i) - Other provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS IR AR BT

(Year ended 31 March 2013) (EZ = —=F=A=+—HILFE)

2.

58

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(r)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit
or loss as follows:

(i) Rental income
Rental income, including rentals invoiced in
advance from properties let under operating
leases, is recognised on the straight-line basis
over the terms of the relevant leases.

(i) Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset excluding
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to
that asset’s net carrying amount.

(i) Dividends
—  Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right
to receive payment is established.

—  Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R AR B

(Year ended 31 March 2013) (EZ = —=F=A=+—HILFE)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

(s)

(t)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
determined.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessary takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised
as part of cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing
costs are being incurred and activities that are
necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or
sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
is suspended or ceases when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Related parties
(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group;
or

(i) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.
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(Year ended 31 March 2013) (B ZE —Z—=F=A=+—HILtFEE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TESTBERM®
(Continued)
() Related parties (Continued) ) BEEALE
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the () RUATHEMMBERIT —HE
following conditions applies: RHEAEEGRHE

()  The entity and the Group are members of () ZEREXSEBRR-—
the same group (which means that each SEBZKERA B
parent, subsidiary, and fellow subsidiary is SRA - WEBRARKLFA
related to the others). ES N EINGIE Al Arik =1z

o

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture iy —FHERBEE—EBHN
of the other entity (for an associate or joint N 1= N
venture of a member of a group of which ERS—BEAKE
the other entity is a member). NAIZEEETKER

A E RRIREE D
%) o

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same (i) MEEBHBR-—F=
third party. FHEEDE -

(v)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity vy —HEEAFE=ER
and the other entity is an associate of the MNEErE mME—%
third entity. BAZE=HERNR

=W

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit v) ZEEAAEEKEAR
plan for the benefit of employees of either EEEHEER L ES
the Group or an entity related to the EA PR S BB & 1
Group. BEIE

(vl The entity is controlled or jointly controlled V) ZEBX(PTIEAAL
by a person identified in (a). PRSI S R RS o

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vi) @@OFTIERALTEHZE
influence over the entity or is a member BEFEEAZE NS A
of the key management personnel of the ZERENZEES AR
entity (or of a parent of the entity). ZEBEBAE -

Close members of the family of a person are those FERATZEREE ATEE N 22
family members who may be expected to influence, or ZEHEEEE 2 RERBHRZ
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the ATEHEZREKE

entity.

60 HyComm Wireless Limited ZE k& FBEHRA A



Notes to the Financial Statements

B R AR B

(Year ended 31 March 2013) (B & — %

2.

—=f=A=t+—HLEFE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts for each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated
if they share a majority of these criteria.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The HKICPA has issued several amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period

of the Group and the Company. Of these, the following

developments are relevant to the Group’s financial

statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures — Transfers of financial assets

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes — Deferred
tax: Recovery of underlying assets

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current

accounting period.

Annual Report 2013 £ R

2.

(u)

=EBGR (#)

okk

D EB 2R
REDBRNIBHRREBLED
AR ERER R ARETRER
KR B BR DB MAHEE
KEMEMALEEEFLERR
AR Z BT EHETE -

BRIE 5 EBHE A KR UAS P e B R SR DL
EmBREME - EEREHE
BEREEgER - “ﬁﬁ@uﬁ’ﬁﬁ%{ﬁ
R FEREERRZENMED - TAIE

E‘JEK%%%ﬁ TemEE®RE
WA BT E o WIEEARIER Z &
"*Mﬂﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁ > AR R A - RISk
2HHHEE -

BRERTEE

7

MEERARERRNRARRNE

S SNBSS MRS LLE
SHERREAE

MEs]  ERBEASEMBHREREH
ZAERTIT ¢

BB MEERETRYHTH
B — MBEESE(EFTA)

BB @RS
FEBIA - WEIREEE (2

125/ FISH — B
ZHEN)

ARE B R R R A S HIR MR
R FERISK BRI o

61



Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Year ended 31 March 2013) (EZ = —=F=A=+—HILFE)

62

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require certain disclosures
to be included in the financial statements in respect of
transferred financial assets that are not derecognised
in their entirety and for any continuing involvement in
transferred financial assets that are derecognised in their
entirety, irrespective of when the related transfer transaction
occurred. However, an entity need not provide the
disclosures for the comparative period in the first year of
adoption. The Group did not have any significant transfers
of financial assets in previous periods or the current period
which require disclosure in the current accounting period
under the amendments.

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes

Under HKAS 12 deferred tax is required to be measured
with reference to the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the entity expects to recover the
carrying amount of the asset(s) in question. In this regard,
the amendments to HKAS 12 introduced a rebuttable
presumption that the carrying amount of investment
property carried at fair value under HKAS 40, Investment
property, will be recovered through sale. This presumption
is rebutted on a property-by-property basis if the investment
property in question is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale.

Previously, where investment properties were held under
leasehold interests, the Group measured deferred tax using
the tax rates consistent with recovery of the property’s
value through use. As a result of adopting the amendments
to HKAS 12, the Group reviewed its investment property
portfolio and concluded that the presumption in the
amended HKAS 12 that the carrying value of the property
will be recovered through sale should be adopted in respect
of each of the investment properties located in Hong Kong.
Therefore, the deferred tax relating to these properties has
been re-measured on the basis of recovering their carrying
amounts entirely through sale. In respect of the Group’s
other leasehold investment properties, the Group has
determined that each of these properties are held within a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time and consequently the presumption in
the amended HKAS 12 is rebutted for these properties.
As a result, the Group continues to measure the deferred
tax relating to these other properties using the tax rate that
would apply as a result of recovering their value through
use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R AR B

(Year ended 31 March 2013) (EZ = —=F=A=+—HILFE)

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes (Continued)

This change in policy has been applied retrospectively by
restating the balances at 1 April 2011 and 31 March 2012,
with consequential adjustments to comparatives for the year

ended 31 March 2012 as follows:

BEHREETBER (@)

BBETERE125E T EH (BT )
(%)
RHEBREHE ARSI T ——F
A—BR=-ZE——F=ZA=t+—H2Z#%
BREMER - WHEHEEZE=-Z—=
FZRA=t—HLEFEZHREFTIEMN
TFHEE

Effect of
As adoption of
previously ~ amendments
reported to HKAS 12 As restated
RhEEE:
ERIE125
DARR (B 25E ]
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT
Consolidated statement of comprehensive BZ-Z--—f#=A=+-H
income for year ended 31 March 2012: FEZGE2HERERE
Income tax expense FEHAX 2,221 2,189) 32
Profit for the year RNEERF 8,201 2,189 10,390
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEZERALE 648 2,189 2,837
Basic eamings per share (HK cents) FREREF (BI) 1.64 0.44 2.08
Consolidated statement of financial RZB-—F=ZA=1+—-Hz
position as at 31 March 2012: FEMHRRRE -
Deferred tax liabilities EXRIEAE 12,656 (12,404) 252
Total non-current liabilities BB EAE 12,656 (12,404) 252
Net assets/Total equity BETE Eapi 302,421 12,404 314,825
Accumulated losses ZEERE 142,033 (12,404) 129,629
Consolidated statement of financial R-Z2——FMA—-AZ
position as at 1 April 2011: REMERRRE -
Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE 10,435 (10,219) 220
Total non-current liabilities FRBARESE 47,528 (10,215) 37,313
Net assets/Total equity BETE/ BapE 301,773 10,215 311,988
Accumulated losses Z5tER 150,206 (10,215) 139,991

As a result of this change in accounting policy, the

income tax expense for the year ended 31 March 2013 is

approximately $185,000 higher than it would have been if

the policy had not been changed and, thereby, increasing

the basic loss per share by $0.004.
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(Year ended 31 March 2013) (EZ = —=F=A=+—HILFE)

4,

64

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES

(GY)

(b)

Critical accounting judgements in applying
the Group’s accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the accounting
judgement set out below.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

The Group recognises provisions for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability. As at 31 March 2013, the Group considered
that it had no disclosable contingent liabilities as
there were neither pending litigation nor events with
potential obligation which were likely to result in
material outflow of economic benefits from the Group.

Sources of estimation uncertainty

Fair value of investment properties

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s
investment properties are stated at fair value based on
the valuation performed by an independent qualified
professional valuer. In determining the fair value, the
valuer has made the valuation on the assumption
that the owner sells the property in the open market
without the benefit of any deferred term contract,
leaseback, joint venture, management agreement
or any similar arrangement which would serve to
increase the value of the property.

(b)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R AR B

(Year ended 31 March 2013) (B ZE —ZE—=F=A=+—HILtFEE)

5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Group manages its diversified businesses according
to the nature of services provided. No operating segments
have been aggregated to form the following four identified
reportable segments.

o Leasing of properties: this segment mainly leases
residential premises to generate rental income and to
gain from the appreciation in the property values in the
long term. Currently, the Group’s investment property
portfolio is located entirely in Hong Kong.

o Property investments: this segment mainly holds
commercial properties to gain from appreciation in
property values. Currently this investment property
portfolio is located entirely in Hong Kong.

o Carpark management: this segment mainly sub-
leases carparks to generate rental income. Currently,
the Group’s carpark operations are located entirely in
Hong Kong.

° Loan financing: this segment provides lending to
personal and corporate customers. Currently, the
Group possesses a money lender license and its
money lending business is mainly carried out in Hong
Kong.

(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities
For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s senior executive management monitors
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the bases set out below.

The measurement basis used for reporting segment
results is adjusted profit before net finance costs,
taxes, depreciation and amortisation (adjusted
EBITDA). Items not specifically attributable to individual
segments, such as gains on disposals of available-
for-sale financial assets, surpluses on revaluations
of investment properties and unallocated operating
expenses are further adjusted and excluded from
segment results.
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5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

—=f=A=t+—HLFE)

EBEK D EER (8

5 =
(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities (a) PEELE BEEREGBHE)

(Continued)
Segment assets include all tangible, intangible DEEERIEMEEFEE - B
assets and current assets with the exception of BEEREBEE  ERHBEEEZ
investments in financial assets and other unallocated A REMRDERATIEERIN o
corporate assets. Segment liabilities include other SHBEBEEDMERE  WEXK
payables and accrued charges attributable to the B EESEETELNERBERER
leasing of properties, property investments, carpark DEFE 2 E M ET R IB R EET &
management and loan financing of the individual A UARSSHEEEE ZRTE
segments and bank borrowings managed directly by B
the segments.
Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable WARBY YR 2/ TELE R
segments by reference to sales generated and the EEZEERB LY SR EEB S
expenses incurred by those segments. 0o

Leasing of Property Carpark Loan

properties investments management  financing Total

NERE VERE FEBHEE EYRE -y

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000

BT BEFT BETT BEFm EETx
2013 “E-z%
Reportable segment revenue 2R PRA
Revenue from external customers REIMNPEFHA 196 - 6,662 2,480 9,338
Reportable segment profit/(loss) 2RI WEN/ (58)

(adjusted EBITDA) ({8 F3%EBITDA) (519) (432) (44) 2,030 1,035
Interest income from bank deposits ROTEHMBHA - - - 12 12
Share of losses of jointly controlled entities FE{4 £ FI¥E | E B8 - (432) - - (432)
Revaluation gains on investment RENESHENG

properties 1,100 - - - 1,100
Reportable segment assets NERIPEE
Investment properties RENE 126,100 - - = 126,100
Property, plant and equipment mE  BERRRE 101 = = - 101
Interest in jointly controlled entities LRSS ERER = 18,711 = - 18,711
Trade and other receivables DS VLS 3 - 392 19,694 20,122
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkEABLER 354 - 2,644 10,930 13,928
Reportable segment liabilities 2RI TER
Other payables and accrued charges Ht NN EAER (77) - (47) (15) (139)
Deferred tax liabilties EERIAAE (252) - - - (252)
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(Year ended 31 March 2013) (EZ = —=F=A=+—HILFE)

5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. BN OILER (&)
(Continued)
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (@ PH*E BEEREE®E)
(Continued)
Leasing of Property Carpark Loan
properties  investments  management financing Total
NEHE  WERE FEHEE @A @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BYTfr  BEFT  B¥Tr  BEFT BRI
2012 (restated) “E-CE(E))
Reportable segment revenue DES: G ON
Revenue from external customers REMPRPHA 835 - 6,546 802 8,183
Reportable segment profit/(loss) TEHHHER,/ (58)
(adjusted EBITDA) (392 EBITDA) 361 - (61) 627 937
Interest income from bank deposits ROFFFBMA 5 - - 74 79
Interest expense FlEHY (199) - - - (199)
Revaluation gains on investment REMESHEYE
properties 13,300 - - - 13,300
Reportable segment assets NERIPEE
Investment properties RENE 125,000 - - - 125,000
Property, plant and equipment nE - BERKE 40 - - - 40
Trade and other receivables TR T L A e U F08 35 - 1,635 13,060 14,730
Cash and cash equivalents ReRERALER 564 - 443 654 1,661
Reportable segment liabilities 2RI HEE
Other payables and accrued charges  EthER FUE R EER (75) - (39) (14) (128)
Deferred tax liabilties BEREAE (252) - - - (252)
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(Year ended 31 March 2013) (B ZE=—F—=F=A=+—HILFE)

5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. BN OILER (&)
(Continued)
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment b) T2HRDILWA - B EE
revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities REE ¥R
2013 2012
=== —E—_F
(Restated)
(&%)
HK$’000 HK$’000
B F T BET T
Revenue A
Reportable segment revenue B ON 9,338 8,183
Profit or loss B&
Reportable segment profit A 23R 2% 7 1,035 937
Elimination of inter-segment expenses 7 EBE R S ¥ 88 1,472 1,414
Other revenue and net gains HEa WA RS F58 1,676 2,616
Revaluation gains on investment properties & EHUzs 1,100 13,300
Gains on disposal of available-for-sale HENHEEVHEE
financial assets Z W - 989
Finance costs TSR R = (322)
Unallocated operating expenses ROBLEERE (6,615) (8,512)
Consolidated (loss)/profit before taxation MRELAIARE
(E18), &7 (1,332) 10,422
Assets EE
Reportable segment assets AE2mHPEE 178,962 141,430
Unallocated assets ROBLEE 133,176 174,856
Consolidated total assets REBERE 312,138 316,286
Liabilities afiE
Reportable segment liabilities AEmoPasE (391) (380)
Unallocated liabilities AL BE (594) (1,081)
Consolidated total liabilities fre BEeE (985) (1,461)
(c) Geographic information (c) HEEFR
The Group only operated in a single geographical REBEERE—E—FBLEEE

68

location, that is, Hong Kong. On this basis, no

geographic segmental analysis is presented for the

year.
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6. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER GAINS 6. H AR HEMss
2013 2012
== Sl s
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Other revenue Hu A
Bank interest income ERITF B UL A 1,672 2,616
Other loan interest income E i ERF S WA 4 =
Interest income on financial assets not WIEE A FET AEE
at fair value through profit or loss 2B E 2B A 1,676 2,616
Other gains Hhlk &=
Gains on disposal of available-for-sale HEHIEERE 2 s
investments - 989
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(Year ended 31 March 2013) (EZ = —=F=A=+—HILFE)

7. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/

7. BR%iLAT (B51R),IER

BRiial (B8R, MmN R GEA) |

(crediting):
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
B F T BET T
(@)  Finance costs @ KA
Interest on: THEEZHE
Bank borrowings not wholly BERRAFEREE
repayable within five years BEZEITEER = 198
Other borrowings HifEE = 124
Total interest expenses on financial W IR A HERT A m
liabilities not at fair value through ZHBEEZNE
profit or loss & = 322
(b)  Staff costs b) BIKAK
Salaries, bonuses and awards e TEA R IEE
(including directors’ emoluments) (BEEEM:) 2,896 3,362
Contributions to defined TEFR AL RGET IR
contribution plan 111 120
3,007 3,482
()  Otheritems ) HfhiEE
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEN N < 566 520
Depreciation e 23 4
Operating lease charges in respect of EBEHEEMEZ
rented premises KEHERS 5,398 6,430
Rental income, net of outgoings WA (BB (1,847) (2,633)
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(Year ended 31 March 2013) (B ZE=—F—=F=A=+—HILFE)

8. TAXATION 8. HiIE
(@ Taxation in the consolidated statement of @ REREEEBERR ZHIELRE
comprehensive income represents:
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——fF
(Restated)
(&F51))
HK$’000 HK$’000
BHEF T BT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax EVERTEIE — BHENEH
Provision for the year F NS = =
Deferred tax EERIE
Current year KFEE = 32
- 32
The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated B BRI fRE?ﬁKEﬁfE?f%Tﬁ
at 16.5% (2012: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable i A A B *E16.56% ——F:
profits for the year. No provision for Hong Kong Profits 16.5%) 1 B 1 - ﬁ%ﬁﬁ(\\zli SER
Tax for 2013 has been made in the consolidated FRESHIEEBE WU ERRE

financial statements as the Group incurred a tax loss

for the year.

(b)  Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting (b)

profit at applicable tax rates:

MEHRIEL —_S—=FFBNE
iR

HEAREAEZHAS RS
w2z HERAS

2013 2012
—E—= —E——fF
(Restated)
(&)
HK$°000 HK$'000
B F T B F T
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRELAT (E518), s F (1,332) 10,422
Notional tax on (loss)/profit before taxation MR AT (EE) SEA
ZAERE (220) 1,720
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR H 2
B 173 37
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BARBMAZ
Mse g (457) (809)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RIERAREABIA
recognised BEMBEE 843 1,170
Tax effect of prior year tax losses utilised KEEBHHEFE
in the current year HIEBE s RETE (337) (103)
Tax effect of temporary differences RERERFER L
not recognised Mg E (2 (1,983)
Tax charge for the year REERIBZ T = 32
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(Year ended 31 March 2013) (EZ = —=F=A=+—HILFE)

9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 9. EEME
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section 161 of BERSATIENEIIIEERCES
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as follows: BT :

Salaries, allowances and

Directors’ fees benefits in kind MPF contributions Total
£k & RBRENER BRESMHN @5t
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
“E-=f -T--% -—B-=f -T--F -EB-=f -—FB--F -F-=f —FT--f

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000 ~ HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000
BETr  BETrT  EMTm  BETT  EBETr  BETT  BETR  BETR

Executive directors HITES

Liu Shun Chuen Bfz% - = 520 504 25 25 545 529
Yeung Sau Chung AT - - 962 1,258 48 63 1,010 1,321
Kong Lingbiao H2E = - 240 240 12 2 252 242

Independent non-executive directors B FHTES

Ng Wai Hung R 180 180 - = = = 180 180
Wu Wang Li RolE 120 120 - = - = 120 120
Jacobsen Wiliam Keith Jacobsen William Keith 120 120 - - - - 120 120
420 420 1,722 2,002 85 ) 2,007 2512

The remuneration of the directors is within the following EEMENFTHEE -

bands:

2013 2012
—E-—=F —E—F
Number of Number of
directors directors

EEAH BEFAH

Up to HK$1,000,000 75 ¥ 1,000,000 7Bk LA T 5 5
HK$1,000,001-HK$ 1,500,000 71,000,001 TLE

781,500,000 7T 1 1

6 6
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B R AR B

(Year ended 31 March 2013) (B ZE=—F—=F=A=+—HILFE)

10. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
Of the five (2012: five) individuals with the highest
emoluments, four (2012: four) are directors whose
emoluments are disclosed in note 9. The aggregate of the
emoluments in respect of the remaining individual (2012:
one) are as follows:

10. ZEHFMAL

RAZ(ZZE—=—F: AZ)ZaFHA
TEF - ME(CE——F OF)AE
B REZHMERMEOWE -5 T —
H(ZE—ZF: —B)ATzMEeEsE
LUNE

2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Salaries and allowances e KoEAL 559 724
MPF contributions BIEE R 27 11
586 735

The emoluments of each of the individuals with the highest
emoluments are within the band of HK$ nil to HK$1,000,000
in both years.

11. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic
Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by
dividing the (loss)/profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company by the weighted average number of

11.

REZMEEE  SHeoFMATZEHE
N BT T E=H 81,000,000 2 HE ©

SR (E5#E) BT
(a EHAX

BEREAR(BR) BNTIEARAE
RS (B1R),E MR FR
B 31T BB R 2 IR T R BT

s

ordinary shares in issue during the year. e
2013 2012
—E-=F T F
(Restated)
(&%)
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity holders KR AER IR E
of the Company (jE38), % F (1,414) 10,362
Weighted average number of ordinary shares = 2517 & A% hnieE
in issue (thousands) FHRRE(FAR) 499,277 499,277
(b) Diluted (b) #8

No diluted (loss)/earnings per share is presented as
there were no potential ordinary share outstanding
during both years ended 31 March 2013 and 2012.
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12.

74

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

12. REYE

HK$’000
The Group AREE BT T
Fair value N¥E
At 1 April 2011 RZE——FMmWA—H 111,700
Fair value adjustment NEEFE 13,300
At 31 March 2012 and 1 April 2012 R-E——F=A=+—HK
—E——FPMA—H 125,000
Fair value adjustment NEEHARE 1,100
At 31 March 2013 RZE—=F=A=+—8H 126,100

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31
March 2013 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out as of that date by B. I. Appraisals Limited,
an independent firm of qualified professional valuers not
connected with the Group. B. |I. Appraisals Limited is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, and
its staff members have appropriate qualifications and
recent experience in the valuation of similar properties
in the relevant locations. The valuation was arrived at by
reference to market evidence of transaction prices for
similar properties in the same locations and condition.
The valuation gave rise to revaluation gains aggregating
HK$1,100,000, which has been credited to profit or loss, for
the year ended 31 March 2013.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes
are measured using the fair value model and are classified
and accounted for as investment properties.

The carrying value of the Group’s investment properties

R-T—=#=A=+—

B AEER

BYMEZ NFEDRAAEETEBRE
ZENABREEGEMERLMRAE
BT EERARNRZAETZAEAR
T E - RIABEBRTEBRARAES

ees  HBEAATGHHEH
MEREYE 2 EE EE KT EREE -
EBAGEEDN2ZERERE KA TE
BYERRBzMSBEEREED - (A&
EEEHNES H£E1,100,0007T © B2

AENSEE S

RBE-ZE—=F=A=

FHAER ©

T—HLEFE

AEBRBELEHEFAFURDES K
FEARRERGZAANEREZHRA
FEEAFE  XOBMIIRASREY

%o

AEERBEZREVEZERERSE

comprises:

2013 2012
—E—-= —ET——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT B FIT

In Hong Kong: REE :
Long-term leases RHEAFEY 14,100 13,000
Medium-term leases R HRFR A 112,000 112,000
126,100 125,000
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(Year ended 31 March 2013) (EZ = —=F=A=+—HILFE)

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. W13 - BB RRE

The Group
REE
Leasehold Computer
improvements equipment Total
HEWELE e B 2
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
JBEEFIT BT B FT
Cost: %N
At 1 April 2011 R-ZE—FOA—H = = =
Additions NE 43 12 55
At 31 March 2012 and RZE——F=A=+—H
1 April 2012 EZE——4FA—H 43 12 55
Additions NE 80 8 88
At 31 March 2013 RZE—=F=H=+—H 123 20 143
Accumulated Z2EIE
depreciation:
At 1 April 2011 RZZE——FMA—HA - - -
Charge for the year KEEHGR (3) 1) (4)
At 31 March 2012 and RZZE——F=A=+—H
1 April 2012 M-_ZT——FMA—H 3 1) (4)
Charge for the year RFE R (19) 4) (23)
At 31 March 2013 WZZE—=F=F=+—8H (22) (5) (@7)
Net book value: BRTEFE ¢
At 31 March 2013 R-—TE—=F=A=+—H 101 15 116
At 31 March 2012 RZE—=—F=A=+—H 40 11 51
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(Year ended 31 March 2013) (EZ = —=F=A=+—HILFE)

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. ¥)% ~ WBERFZE @)

(Continued)
The Company
¥ N/NE|
Leasehold Computer
improvements equipment Total
HEWEEE e B st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT JEBET T BT T
Cost: RS
At 1 April 2011 RZZE——FMNA—A - - =
Additions NE - 12 12
At 31 March 2012 and RZE——F=A=+—H
1 April 2012 r—ZE——FNAF—H - 12 12
Additions nNE - 8 8
At 31 March 2013 RZZE—=F=HA=+—H - 20 20
Accumulated ZEHE -
depreciation:
At 1 April 2011 RZE——FMHA—H - - -
Charge for the year REE R - (1) (1)
At 31 March 2012 and A—E——F=FA=+—H
1 April 2012 E-_E——#mA—H - (1) (1
Charge for the year REEHBR - ) 3)
At 31 March 2013 RZE—=F=A=+—H - 4) (4)
Net book value: BRTHEFE ¢
At 31 March 2013 RZE—=F=HA=+—H - 16 16

At 31 March 2012

RZE——F=A=+—H

11
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(Year ended 31 March 2013) (EZ = —=F=A=+—HILFE)

14. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 14. B A TR
The Company
b /N

2013 2012

—E—=F —T——F

HK$°000 HK$’000

BT T BETT

Unlisted shares, at cost JEETRRAD IR 1 1
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEULBT B A Bl FRIE 191,070 155,608
191,071 155,609
Impairment losses recognised BERERREEE (75,594) (72,029)
115,477 83,580

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2013
are set out in note 26.

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and with no fixed terms of repayment. They are
classified as non-current as they are not expected to be
recoverable within the next twelve months from the end of
the reporting period.

The aggregate impairment loss recognised at 31 March

2013 has been determined by the directors with reference
to the net assets of the subsidiaries.
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K-B-ZF=A=+-BZIEWE
AT ERAM 26 -

N E R BFESEER 2R NE
BlEERY - ERARRARRIER
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15.

78

INTEREST IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED

15. HEZEHEREDR

ENTITIES
The Group The Company
REEE RN F]

2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—= —E——F —EB—=H =—T—=—F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BMETFIT JBEEF T BT
Unlisted shares, at cost JEETRRG - AR = = = -
Share of net assets EIHEEFE 18,711 — = =
18,711 - - -

Details of the Group’s interest in the jointly controlled entities

are as follows:

AT RASER ARZEH B

Proportion of ownership interest

R
Place of Group’s  Heldby  Heldby
Form of incorporation Particulars of issued effective the a
Name of joint venture business structure  and operation and paid up capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  Principal activity
H-8
AL R BRIR rEEe  @mALE  HELAR
RELEER EBREYA 2EHY BlERE R ElRER B8 BE  IZER
Citi Charm Limited Incorporated Hong Kong HK$2 50% - 50%  Property investment
A ATE A BT NERE
Delta Harbour Limited Incorporated Hong Kong HK$2 50% - 50%  Property investment
L &R BEQT NERE
Huge King Limited Incorporated Hong Kong HK$2 50% - 50%  Property investment
ek Bl BT NERE
Riccini Investments Limited  Incorporated Hong Kong HK$2 50% - 50%  Property investment
AL &R BEOT nERE
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(Year ended 31 March 2013) (EZ = —=F=A=+—HILFE)

15. INTEREST IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED

15. HEEHSEER (@)

ENTITIES (Continued)
Summary financial information on jointly controlled entities ERELRIEHEE — KNEB 2 ERAER
— Group’s effective interest: 2B E R
2013 2012
=== —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Non-current assets EmBEE 17,500 =
Current assets mENEE 2,840 =
Non-current liabilities JEREAE (20,290) -
Current liabilities mEAE (368) -
Net liabilities BEFHE (318) -
Income WA 1,067 -
Expenses sz (1,499) -
Loss for the year REFZEIE (432) -
16. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 16. O[{HEEEKEE
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Available-for-sale equity securities A ERARES
Listed in Hong Kong and stated at RED LI ATES IR
market value 4,989 7,329
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17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

80

17. BWERR R E Mt B FRIE

The Group The Company
#EE EIN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F T —ZT-=F —T——F

HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BEEF T JBMET T B FIT

Trade receivables FEUT AR TR 113 1,346 = =
Loans receivable JEUE 19,680 13,000 = =
Loan interest receivables FEUE TR B 10 59 - -
Loans and receivables BN EW R IE 19,803 14,405 - -
Deposit and prepayments e MFER FRIE 748 1,337 339 923
20,551 15,742 339 923

The aging analysis of trade receivables which are past due

but not impaired is as follows:

5360 L 14 o 2 2 M B K B 6 >
T

The Group
S 3]
2013 2012
—E—-= —E——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

Current

B1H]

Less than 1 month past due BHELH1@EA 113 555
1 to 3 months past due BE1 = 3@ A = 791
113 1,346
113 1,346
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(Year ended 31 March 2013) (EZ = —=F=A=+—HILFE)

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)  17.

All of the trade receivables are expected to be recovered
within one year.

The Group has established credit policies. Rentals receivable
from tenants and service income receivable from customers
are payable on presentation of invoices.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance are
debtors with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$113,000 (2012: HK$1,346,000) which are past due
as at the reporting date and for which the Group has not
provided any impairment losses. Based on past experience
of the Group, it is determined that no impairment allowance
is necessary in respect of past due balances as there
have not been significant changes in credit quality and the
balances are still considered to be fully recoverable. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

JE ST Bl R I L At PR MR TR (48)
AT G FEMORAR TR — 4 POl -

AEETERERE - KARTZEK
HERRKETF ZEBKRRBEA - RE
B SR BN o

AEBRKEFEHREEREESG KX
4 E 13,000 ( — T — —F : B
1,346,000 7T ) 2 FEM R K - H ¥ E B
HAE @ H - A SR B 4 AF AR E
EBiERE BEASEATLR AR
EEEERBERNE L MERDER
AA2HWE - MRADARBHEH
ERERE AEBLERZEERET
EEEAR -

18. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED 18. HEhENFIBERESTEHR
CHARGES
The Group The Company
AEE PN

2013 2012 2013 2012

—EBE-=F —ZT——-F =ZB-Z=F —T——_fF

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000

B FT BETFIT BETF T BT T

Accrued charges FEFTE A 689 1,165 566 1,055
Other payables — E R RIE —

within one year —FR 11 11 - -

Deposit received BlZS 33 33 - -
Financial liabilities measured 1% #k $4 5k A5t &

at amortised cost YA E 733 1,209 566 1,055

All of the other payables are expected to be settled within
one year or are repayable on demand.
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19. DEFERRED TAXATION 19. EEHIR
The Group REHE
The components of deferred tax liabilities provided in BERRE B AR R R R B 2 IR IEF
the consolidated statement of financial position and the TBEE ARSI RRERNZEBHNT -

82

movements during the year are as follows:

Accelerated

tax
depreciation Tax losses Total
INEFBIBITE HIEEE W5
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
JEET T BT T BT
At 1 April 2011, as previously H—-Z——4FP1H—H
reported (AEZEHHR) 10,852 417) 10,435
Effect of adoption of HKAS 12 SRAFE B & 5HAERIFE 1255
(amendment) (BT K) 2 & (10,250) 35 (10,215)
At 1 April 2011, asrestated R -ZE——FEM/—H (&E5) 602 (382) 220
Deferred tax charged/(credited) PREzRFHIBR (5T A)
to profit or loss ZIRERIE 120 (88) 32
At 31 March 2012 and RZE——F=A=+—HK
1 April 2012, as restated —E-—FWA—R(EY) 722 (470) 252
Deferred tax charged to MBI 2
profit or loss PRIEFR I - - _
At 31 March 2013 R-E—=F=A=+—H 722 (470) 252
The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in REBIWAFATHEBRELEHEE
respect of the following items: =
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT B FT
Tax losses TRIEEE 14,361 16,359
Taxable temporary difference JERTIE R E5E (56) (50)
14,305 16,309




Notes to the Financial Statements

B R AR B

(Year ended 31 March 2013) (B & — %

19. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

The Company

At 31 March 2013, the Company has unused tax losses of
HK$6,705,884 (2012: HK$8,658,697) available for offset
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profits
streams. The tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

—=f=A=t+—HLEFE)

ZNNC]

;E P %lj

19. IRAEFLIE (&)

W_ZT—=F=ZA=+—8 ' ARFHE
KREYAIIEEIE B 6,705,884 L (=&

— 1 : 58,658,697 7T ) A LK $H K
FB A R BE T8 &1 R 2R 4 | 2R
W EERECEHIBEE - BIIEEIE ]
IR HAAEES o

20. SHARE CAPITAL 20. A
Number of Amount
shares per share Amount
RDEE BREHE o
"000 HK$ HK$'000
FA BT BEFT
Authorised: VETE
At 1 April 2011, 31 March 2012, RNZZE——FWHYA—H -
1 April 2012 and 31 March 2013 —ET——H=ZA=+—H"
ZE-ZFMA-AK
—ET—=F=A=+—H 20,000,000 0.10 2,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITRER
At 1 April 2011, 31 March 2012, RZZE—FMA—H
1 April 2012 and 31 March 2013 —E-—F=A=1+—H
—E——_FMA—HK
—T-=f=A=+—H 499,277 0.10 49,928

Annual Report 2013 £ R

83



Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS IR AR BT

(Year ended 31 March 2013) (B Z ==

21.

84

—=$=ZA=+—HLEEE)

RESERVES 21. %
The reconciliation between the opening and closing NEFSERERS B DN E %}]&Hﬁ%z,ﬁg
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated BZHBESNGEEREHRK - AA
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes BRI IO RNEY R ERE 2 EE *i
in equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s individual B o
components of equity between the beginning and the end
of the year are set out below.
Share Contributed Accumulated
premium surplus losses Total
(Note)
R aE MARE ZitEE At
(Hfzt)

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000

BT T BT T BT T BT
The Company KAF
At 1 April 2011 RZE——FMA—H 143,807 555,303 (492,073) 207,037
Total comprehensive loss REEZHBELRE

for the year - - (7,680) (7,680)
At 31 March 2012 —F=ZA=1+—H 143,807 555,303 (499,753) 199,357
At 1 April 2012 RZE-——FWA—H 143,807 555,303 (499,753) 199,357
Total comprehensive loss AEERHEEEEAR
for the year - - (6,953) (6,953)

At 31 March 2013 RZZE—=F=A=+—4H 143,807 555,303 (506,706) 192,404

Note:

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference
between the consolidated shareholders’ funds of a former
subsidiary at the date on which the Group reorganisation became
effective and the nominal amount of the share capital of the
Company issued under the Group reorganisation in 1997.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
contributed surplus is also available for distribution to shareholders.
However, a company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a
distribution out of contributed surplus, if:

(@) the company is, or would after the payment be, unable to
pay its liabilities as they become due; or
(b) the realisable value of the company’s assets would thereby

be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued
share capital and share premium accounts.

ARBZHBAREEREESHERER
—RAMBARZEERRE @ BIRE
—NMNEFEEEHETZARRRAEEE
2 Z% -

REARE-NAN-FRRPEUERA)
)\i“@ﬁﬂﬁ“/)ﬁ%l&? T ETﬁIJF
AT RAINEEHARES KSR RS
FEH DK

AAERHIRELIRN RS & EBAER
FHMEE K

(@)

AAEEZAZBEEERAMNERAER
& BETRA R EER 2@ -
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22. OPERATING LEASE
The Group as lessee
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

22.

REWE

AEBEEREHEA

RS AR - REBIRER AR
B R BERRIRERS 2 RERT
5 AR B

2013 2012
SR —T—_4F
HK$’000 HK$’000

BETFTT BT T

Within one year —FR

355 409

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for the car parks under management. Leases are
negotiated for an average term of two years and rentals are
fixed during the term.

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future minimum
lease payments:

REHENREASELMERFES
NS  BOKERRFE M
FHAESEETE -

REEESHBEA
RBEHRGERE  AEECREFH
THIRKEEEESFTA

2013 2012
= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000

BETTT BETT

Within one year —FR

16 157
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23.

24.

86

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group joined a
mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for
all employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme s registered
with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in funds under the control of independent
trustees.

Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at rates specified in the rules. The only obligation
of the Group in respect of the MPF Scheme is to make
the required contributions specified therein. No forfeited
contributions are available to reduce contributions payable
in future years.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions charged to
profit or loss represent contributions payable by the Group
at rates specified in the rules of the MPF Scheme.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no
significant forfeited contributions available to reduce
contributions payable by the Group in future years.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at reasonable costs.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to ensure it is effective and optimises
shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future
capital requirements of the Group prevailing and projected
capital expenditure and projected investment opportunities.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may consider the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, the return of capital to shareholders, the issue
of new shares or selling assets to reduce debt.

The Group assesses the total equity presented on the face
of the consolidated statement of financial position for capital
management purposes.

23.

24,

RRTERIET S

A-2TTF_A—AR A%EA
FE2BERS ARG AR
B(Mamests)) - AMSHBIHRE
WA S BIEAIR B AES
HAUERREL  BESHAZEE
REBIEEARHZESARAEE
ZBEANRRA -

RigseETEI R BEREES
AR BIRRANETRZ L R A% 8IED
WK - AEE BB B ZE—RIE
RIBEZEEMELIEEMBHR - BA
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—=$=ZA=+—HLEEE)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and equity price

risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.

These risks are limited by the Group’s financial management

policies and practices described below.

(@)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
loans receivable and trade and other receivables.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

The Group minimises the credit risk on loans
receivable by obtaining certain guarantees and
collateral from borrowers and the directors have
delegated responsibility for credit checks on
borrowers.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and takes into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

The maximum exposure to credit risk, without taking
account of any collateral held, is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
statement of financial position after deducting any
impairment allowances.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade and
other receivables are set out in note 17.
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25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

88

25, BIEERERE (&)

Liquidity risk (b) REEZRER
Individual operating entities within the Group are AEEETNEANSESEEFEHS
responsible for their own cash management, including BERNIREEIE  BERSARZE
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the HIGENEEERUENTERE S
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands, = EBEERATEESSHE -
subject to approval by the parent company’s board. NEBNHE A THERE TEHE
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity SEREERBEELEERE - LAME
requirements and compliance with lending covenants, IREEHE TS E IR S 6 N BE RS o] (i
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash I8 2 B EHEHF AR E T B S
and readily realisable marketable securities and BIRE RN EAERER  AER
adequate committed lines of funding from major HEHLEHZREESEK -
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements
in the short and longer term.
The following table details the remaining contractual TREHNEBRANANTFHEEE
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the MNERE BRI A& RS 2 FR A 495 2
Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities, which H1E TR EAS KBRS
are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows E(BEBESOMNE - sin A%
(including contractual rates or, if floating, based on B)FE - BIiRH AR BRR 45 SR
rates current at the end of the reporting period) and TEBRER)UARARER R AN T
the earliest date the Group and the Company pay: BNEZHEEEEE
2013
—E-=F
Total More than More than
contractual Within 1yearbut  2years but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
amount cash flow  on demand 2 years 5 years
GEY
RURRE —ERH BE-F BAWE
EE MERE EEZk EIRmE EIREF
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BETT BETT BETFT BETT BETT
The Group KEE
Other payables and HERATIER
accrued charges g 733 733 733 = =
The Company AN
Other payables and HEERFIER
accrued charges BB 566 566 566 = =
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25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

()

B E PR EIE ()

Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) FEELRE(E)
2012
oS
Total More than More than
contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
amount cashflow  ondemand 2 years 5 years
ah
REHRAE —FRH HiB—F AR E
REE mEEE EEk ELRRE BEIRRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BEFT BT BETT
The Group AEE
Other payables and HiERFER
accrued charges [EEtER 1,209 1,200 1,209 - -
The Company ANE
Other payables and HitEI7ER
accrued charges e B 1,055 1,055 1,055 - -
Interest rate risk (c) F=mE R
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from REEAZ M EEREEZREE

loans receivable and bank deposits. Loans receivable
bearing interest at fixed rates expose the Group to
fair value interest rate risk. The bank deposits bearing
interest at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk.

Sensitivity analysis

It is estimated that a general increase/decrease of 100
basis points in the interest rates of variable rate bank
savings prevailing at the reporting date, with all other
variables held constant, would increase/decrease
the Group’s profit after tax and decrease/increase
accumulated losses by approximately HK$50,000 for
the year ended 31 March 2013 (2012: HK$40,000).
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25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

90

(©)

(d)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for
financial instruments in existence at that date. The
100 basis point increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible
change in interest rates over the period until the end
of the next reporting period. The analysis is performed
on the same basis for 2012.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from equity investments classified as available-for-sale
financial assets (see Note 16).

The Group’s listed investments are listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Group observes
the investee company’s operation and development,
and seeks to obtain an understanding of their
business management.

It is estimated that an increase/decrease of 10% in
the respective quoted share prices of these financial
assets, with all other variables held constant, would
have increased/decreased the Group’s net assets and
fair value reserve by approximately HK$490,000 for
the year ended 31 March 2013 (2012: HK$730,000).

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s fair value reserve that would
arise assuming that the changes in the respective
quoted share prices have occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to equity price risk at the end
of the reporting period. It is also assumed that the
fair values of the Group’s equity investments would
change in accordance with the historical correlation
with the relevant share price that none of the Group’s
available-for-sale financial assets would be considered
impaired as a result of the short term fluctuation of
the relevant share, and that all other variables remain
constant.

25, BIEERERE (&)

()

(d)

IESEN )]

HREZ W ()

R BREE D THREMEE R H
SHEERFEHRZS YO ER
RErEEZ A EM S TAR =X
B o LA TEE100EEREE
BEEESE T —ERE BEERLES
) A ) 2 A BE 3R & IR B P T
e 2T ——F 2N HRARE
REHETT o

RIEERE R
AEBEAZ D BRRHHEENS
BE(RME16) 2 RERERE
EZBEEREZRELE

AEBEZ LHTRERBEBER S
PAIERAR LT - AEBEEBRKRE
HRARCEENRER  UEEE
EEEE -

BT Z S B EEMMRKRESD B
EFTBE10% - T A i E
HEFI g AIBE_T—=F=
A=+—BLEFERAEREEF
BRAFERES LA TRLOE
k5 490,000C( =T — = F : B
730,0007T) °
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25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

25, ISR R EE (&)

(e) Fair values (e) A¥E
The table below analyses financial instruments, carried TERAMABBEEDMEAFEEA
at fair value, by the valuation method. The different BRZBETE - TRFRZEZN
levels have been defined as follows: TS ¢
—  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for — HEEEXBEELZERMS
identical assets or liabilities (level 1). ZHRECRERARE)(F—R) °
— Input other than quoted prices included within — BRE—REFEZHREBEIN - G
level 1 that are observable for the asset or H# (BMRER) skffE# (Bl
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or BROTE) BB 2 EESK
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2). BEHAE(EH) °
— Input for the asset or liability that are not based — WIKBEERAETMSEE
on observable market data (that is, unobservable ZEESAEE AE(BNIEE
input) (level 3). REFBEAME)(BE=4) -
The following table presents the Group’s financial TREIWAREENR _ZE—=F=H
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value at =+ —BrkZEFE——-F=A=+—
31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012. HEATEAECHBEERA
fg% o
2013
—E—-=
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
F—R =t B=H
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
JBHET T JBMET T BT T
Financial assets at fair value: BRFEAR
ZIHEEE
Available-for-sale financial assets T EMBEEE 4,989 - -
Total assets BERE 4,989 = -

Annual Report 2013 £ R

1



Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS IR AR BT

(Year ended 31 March 2013) (EZ = —=F=A=+—HILFE)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
()

92

(f)

Fair values (Continued)

25, BIEERERE (&)

(e) RAFE®E)

2012
=4
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
EF—R EZR FE=R
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
JBEEFIT JBMEFIT JBEFT
Financial assets at fair value: BAFEAEZ
WIS ERE
Available-for-sale financial assets AIEHEM B EE 7,329 - -
Total assets BEBE 7,329 = =

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the
end of the reporting period. A market is regarded
as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and
those prices represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length basis. These
instruments are included in level 1.

Estimation of fair values

Available-for-sale financial assets

The fair value of the available-for-sale financial assets
is based on quoted market prices at the end of the
reporting period without any deduction for transaction
costs.

(f)

RERBTZEEZHHETAZRF
BTy AR & HAfR A RS PR (B
AREE o W FTRE 7] BES N2 E 2
WXZ - X508 K12 1754
B ERRGENEEREES
Mm&FEBRKRERERRAFR
AETRMSER S - AlZmEEA
R ZEFTAGAFE A -

AR
TG B EE
AMHSHEM B EE 2 A FETIAR
& HAfR A5 2R B P ¥R TR (8 (IR I BR
ERRBEA) BIRE
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26. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 26. AQ BB AR ZFHE

COMPANY
Particulars of the subsidiaries at 31 March 2013 are as R-E—=F=A=+—H f[EAH
follows: B -
Percentage of equity
BRI
Place of Issued
incorporation/ Group’s Held capital/
establishment effective by the Held by paid-in Authorised
Name of company and operation holding  Company subsidiary capital capital  Principal activities
B&T
FMEL/ BT AEE  HALE AHEAF A/
NAEER REEHE BREE o) BE  BARK EEER  TEEK
Capital Scope Limited British Virgin Islands 100% 100% = US$1 US$50,000  Investment holding
RBRAHE 1ET 50000%T  RAER
Capital Up Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 100% 100% - US$1 US$50,000  Investment holding
RBRAHE 1ET 50000%T  RAER
Classic Charter Limited Hong Kong 96% - 96% HK$50 HK$10,000  Loan financing
REBRAT 0 A¥s0T AE10000T EFEE
Concord Base Holdings Limited Hong Kong 100% - 100% HK$1 HK$10,000  Inactive
NG 0 BB EH10000T  EEEH
Concord Ocean Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 100% 100% - US$1 US$50,000  Investment holding
RBRAHE 1%1 50000%T  REER
Jumbo Light Limited British Virgin Islands 100% 100% - US$1 US$50,000  Investment holding
RREUHS 1%0 B0000%7T RERR
Keen Capital Investments Limited Hong Kong 100% 100% - HKS1 HK$10,000  Carpark management
HEREBRAR 3 BT BB10000  FESER
Mega Shine Enterprises Limited Hong Kong 100% - 100% HKS1 HK$10,000  Inactive
SAREEBRAF EE BEIT EK10000T  EEEH
Milion Good Group Limited British Virgin Islands 100% - 100% US$100 US$50,000  Property investment
RBRAHE 100 50000%T WERE
Qasis Star Enterprises Limited British Virgin Islands 100% - 100% US$100 US$50,000  Investment holding
BRI 100X  50000%7w REZRK
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26. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 26. AN BB A B 2518 (@)
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COMPANY (Continued)
Percentage of equity
REAML
Place of Issued
incorporation/ Group’s Held capital/
establishment effective by the Held by paid-in Authorised
Name of company and operation holding  Company subsidiary capital capital  Principal activities
BRI
ML/ L AEE  HANE ANEAF B/
NEER REELY BBREE o] BE  BERXK EEER  FTEEE
Orient Glory Investments Limited British Virgin Islands 100% - 100% US$100 US$50,000  Investment holding
RERUES 100%T  50000%€w REAR
Prime Concept Development Limited Hong Kong 100% 100% - HKS$1 HK$10,000  Investment holding
ERERERAHA 58 ¥ A%i0000r  REEZR
Royal Asset Investments Limited Hong Kong 100% - 100% HKS$1 HK$10,000  Property investment
EERAERAA Eh BT BE10000T  MERE
Sino Art Enterprises Limited Hong Kong 100% - 100% HKS$1 HK$10,000  Inactive
ENREERAT B AR EE10000T  EEER
Wealth Jade Limited British Virgin Islands 100% - 100% US$100 US$50,000  Investment holding
RERHES 100EL  50000%FL RAER
World Regal Limited British Virgin Islands 100% 100% - US$1 US$50,000  Investment holding
EERAES 1%€71T 50000%7m REER

HyComm Wireless Limited ZE k& FBEHRA A



Financial Summary

IR

RESULTS EE
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
—TTHhE —ET-TF —T——§ T ZEB-Z=F
(restated) (restated) (restated)
(E51) (=51) (&51)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BEFT BEFTT BEFT BEFT BT
Turnover ] 19,079 9,531 8,241 8,183 9,338
Other operating income Hag A 4,377 1,840 1,371 2,616 1,676
Operating costs R (22,410) (9,438) (12,121) (14,344) (13,014)
Other operating income (expenses)  EAZ &I A (FIs) (25,721) 21,140 31,720 13,300 1,100
Profit/(loss) from operating activities 48 & #7534 7/ (E518) (24,675) 23,073 29,211 9,755 (900)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale H & ATt § & 81 15
financial assets BE 2 We - 6,210 6,370 989 -
Impairment loss recognised A ENREE
in respect of available-for-sale WBRZHEEE
financial assets (40,750) - - - -
Gain/(loss) on disposals of HEWBARZ
subsidiaries Wz (E18) 9,522 20,701 - - =
Gain on disposal of an associate HE—MHE AT
Al 20 - - - —
Finance costs IR (19,308) (1,414) (651) (322) =
Share of results of associates Al AN e 8) - - - -
Share of results of jointly controlled &/ [ ]
entity BRxE - - - - (432)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BEATERN, (E8) (75,199) 48,570 34,930 10,422 (1,332)
Taxation A 88 (109) (117) (32) -
Profit/(loss) for the year AEERF/ (B8B) (75,111) 48,467 34,813 10,390 1,332
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
At 31 March R=A=+—H
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
—ETNF ZEF-TF —E——F T E-Z=F
(restated) (restated) (restated)
(E51) (E=51) (E5)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BEFT BT BEFT BT BT
Total assets LERE 374,205 353,979 374,705 316,286 312,138
Total liabilities BELR (136,328) (63,865) (62,717) (1,461) (985)
Shareholders’ funds BEES 237,877 290,114 311,988 314,825 311,153
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Summary of Major Properties

TRYEEE

Particulars of the Group’s investment properties as at 31 March

2013 are as follows:

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Location

ih Bh

Gross
floor area
(sq. ft.)
BHEEE
(FHER)

FEBREWER _T—=F=A=+—HBZ

BT

REM=

Purpose

jik=s

Term of lease

HNFH

Group’s
attributable
interest
KEBEEMN
R

96

House No. 26 and the Garden

on Ground Floor, and Car Parking Spaces
Nos. 26A and 26B on Basement,

Las Pinadas, No. 33 Shouson Hill Road,
Hong Kong

S

SN EI3HERANE

26 BEiE M T IEE

A R b & 26A 2 26B {2 H i1

Flat G on 23rd Floor, Hing On Mansion,
On Shing Terrace, No. 5 Tai Yue Avenue,
Taikoo Shing, Hong Kong

FEBKEH

AHMBESRELEA

L3 IEGE

Flat E on 13th Floor, Hing On Mansion,
On Shing Terrace, No. 5 Tai Yue Avenue,
Taikoo Shing, Hong Kong

BENEH

A HRLERE

L 13IEER

4,868

675

600

Residential
F=

Residential
F=

Residential
F=

Medium-term lease

hHATE A

Long-term lease

RHIHELG

Long-term lease

REIEL

100

100

100



Hy Comm

HyComm Wireless Limited
ERB\EHRESARQIT
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